Enclosure 12 — Email received from Costal Communities Network.

From: info@communitiesforseas.scot <info@communitiesforseas.scot>
Sent: 19 November 2021 14:32

To: Cabinet Secretary for Rural Affairs and Islands <CabSecRAI@gov.scot>;
Minister for Environment and Land Reform <MinisterELR@gov.scot>

Cc: googlegroups.com

Subject: Thank-you from the Coastal Communities Network

Dear Ms Gougeon; Ms McAllan

Many thanks to you both, and your colleagues, for meeting with the Coastal
Communities Network on Tuesday 16t November.

We greatly appreciate your time and enjoyed the opportunity to speak with you more
about the interests and activities which CCN represents. We wanted to share the
attached letter of thanks, to briefly summarise the main points of our discussion, and
highlight the follow-up actions identified during the meeting.

I’'m also attaching a (2 page) summary of global salmon farming case studies and a
recent piece from CCN memberh which featured in
British Wildlife.

We look forward to building a positive and constructive working relationship with you both and do
hope to meet again soon.

Sincerely,
The Coastal Communities Network, Scotland

www.communitiesforseas.scot | Address: 5 Rose Street, Edinburgh, EH2 2PR
Subscribe to the CCN email newsletter.

CCN has a vision for Scotland’s seas to be abundant in biodiversity and resilient to
future changes, providing sustainable and diverse livelihoods to those living around
them, in perpetuity.
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Enclosure 12.1 — Attachment

Coastal Communities Network

Ms Mairi Gougeon, Cabinet Secretary for Rural Affairs and Islands
Ms Mairi Mcallan, Minister for Environment and Land Reform

19 November 2021
Re: meeting with the Coastal Communities Network, Tuesday 16™ November 2021
Dear Cabinet Secretary; Minister

Many thanks to you both, and your colleagues, for meeting with the Coastal Communities Network
(CCN) on Tuesday 16 November. We greatly appreciate your time and enjoyed the opportunity to
speak with you more about the interests and activities which CCN represents. We wanted to briefly
summarise the main points of our discussion, and highlight the follow-up actions identified during
the meeting.

Fauna & Flora International (FFI) introduced the background to CCN and FFI's current role in providing
neutral facilitation, with a view to longer-term independence for CCN. This is underpinned by a central
CCN Advisory Group, selected from within CCN’s membership, of which representatives within
Tuesday’s meeting were drawn from. The full CCN Advisory Group membership is made up of:

_also kindly joined the meeting, as an active member of CCN.

Members of CCN spoke initially about their own local points of focus and experience — this included
the positive impact upon biodiversity which communities can make in leading Marine Protected Areas;
the ongoing challenges community institutions (including Community Councils, such as is the case in
the Clyde) face in securing a representation within wider fora such as Regional Marine Planning
Partnerships; the lack of legal enforcement of marine wildlife laws (e.g. ongoing use of Acoustic
Deterrent Devices); the need for ecosystem-based assessment of salmon farm operations in Scotland;
and the challenges that exist around the salmon farming industry’s loss of social licence to operate.

Later in the meeting we also spoke upon the challenges that exist around Inshore Fisheries Groups
and the need to ensure their governance and composition is reformed; issues around the robustness
of Government-commissioned economic reports; and we referenced the Clyde (in its highly altered
state) as a representative microcosm of the deficiencies within aquaculture consenting, as well as a
useful example of the negative cumulative environmental impact of other industries.

We're sure you appreciate that we had a small amount of time to cover a large and complex number
of issues and would very much welcome the opportunity to unpack these issues further with you both
in future meetings.
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Coastal Communities Network

Scotland
We were therefore encouraged to hear that you would both like to meet with CCN again and we’d be
happy to follow this up separately, with some suggested dates for the new year. Perhaps it would be
most useful for us to dedicate future meetings to specific topics? We would like to suggest either
salmon farming or Highly Protected Marine Areas for the next meeting, and would be guided by your
advice in terms of what would be the timeliest. We’re also keen to organise site visits and boat trips
for you both, perhaps after the winter months, where you can really get a sense of the coastal areas
CCN represents, first-hand.

We were incredibly encouraged to hear that you believe working with communities is critical to
moving beyond the ongoing crises, and we also agree that the changes we need to make now to meet
these challenges ought to be fair and just. As we stated in the meeting, we are living through a critical
moment in time at present and, as such, we do also need to see big actions - we therefore implore
you to be bold in delivering your respective portfolios. If your actions are taken to protect the natural
environment, we can assure you that you will have CCN’s — and the tens of thousands of individuals it
represents - full backing.

We note here a small number of follow-up actions:

- Exploring the difficulties Fairlie Coastal Trust are experiencing in accessing the Clyde
Regional Marine Planning Partnership.

- Exploring the current Clyde fish farm applications.

- Organising further engagement with CCN regarding Highly Protected Marine Areas.

- ccN and I o follow-up suggestion of a meeting - in progress.

- CCN toshare a brief (2 page) comparative summary of salmon farming models which operate
in other countries — attached.

Since meeting with you on both on Tuesday, CCN has been invited to meet with Professor Griggs
regarding the aquaculture regulatory review, something we were unable to secure beforehand. We
appreciate the speed at which you were able to move this along for us, thank-you.

We look forward to building a positive and constructive working relationship with you both. Please
don’t hesitate to get in touch with us at any time - both directly with CCN or with the respective
organisations which it represents.

Sincerely,

On Behalf of the Coastal Communities Network
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Coastal Communities Network
Scotland

Salmon Farming Global Case Studies (brief high-level examples)

Canada - The Federal Government has set a goal that all salmon farming in British Columbia should
take place in closed cages by 2025. 17 open net farms in the Broughton Archipelago will be emptied
by 2023, to establish a farm-free migration corridor to reduce harm to wild salmon. Several farms in
the Discovery Islands have not been stocked for the first time and sea lice numbers on wild salmon
smolts have been much lower as a result https://alexandramorton.typepad.com/. Biologist
Alexandra Morton’s book Mot on My Watch documents the science that supported this

decision. https://seawestnews.com/a-new-era-for-salmon-farming-in-british-columbia/

USA - March 2018, the Governor of Washington State banned open net salmon farming, following
the escape of 250,000 Atlantic

salmon. https://www.npr.org/sections/thesalt/2018/03/26/597019406/after-three-decades-
washington-state-bans-atlantic-salmon-farms

Denmark - In 2020, the Environment Minister put forward two bills that put ‘an end to the expansion
of marine production.” She said, ‘the aquatic environment is in crisis and the sea should not be a
dustbin’. Land-based farming ‘is the path we should take, instead of expanding marine farming at
risk to the aquatic environment.’ https://salmonbusiness.com/the-sea-should-not-be-a-dustbin-says-
danish-government-announcing-new-bills-to-move-production-to-land-based/

.

Norway - In January 2021, the Minister of Fisheries said, “..... the goal of sustainable growth will be
central. Then there must be solutions to the challenges of lice, escapes and high mortality. Among
the instruments being considered is a new incentive scheme to lock more of the current fjord farming
into closed facilities. The new scheme has not been decided yet. The ministry has started work on a
facility, and hopes for a clarification before the summer.” ‘We want a development that also
facilitates closed facilities. Customers are increasingly demanding documentation on sustainability
and the environment...” ‘Canadian authorities have announced a phasing out of open salmon cages in
their fjords by 2025, following persistent pressure from environmentalists and indigenous peoples in
their farming regions. This is an iceberg that comes driving. Without customers, there will be little
business. If you look at where the market is moving, with EU taxonomy and documentation
requirements, then I think closed farming is something that will force itself out’ (i.e. is

inevitable) https://e24.no/hav-og-sjoemat/i/kR8k4Q/varsler-ny-havbruksstrategi-vil-ha-mer-lukket-

oppdrett-i-norge

Sweden - in March 2017, as a result of the Weser-judgement from the EU Court and new
environmental quality standards in water in Sweden, the Supreme Land and Environmental Court
ruled to stop fish farming in cages in open water in three places and to reduce the amount farmed at
a fourth site. The three banned farms would be closed within three years. The Court questioned
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whether uses open net cages was the best technique and whether the affected waters could break
down the discharged nutrients without eutrophication. This judgement was seen as likely to bring an
end to all fish farming in open cages, affecting waters not having reached Good Ecological

Status. https://sverigesradio.se/artikel /6652202

Argentina - In June 2021, Argentina’s southernmost province, Tierra del Fuego, approved a bill that
bans salmon farming in open net pens. https://www.independent.co.uk/climate-
change/news/argentina-salmon-farming-ban-environment-b1880503.html

Australia - In September 2021, the Tasmania State Government announced that it would place an
immediate 12-month halt on offshore salmon farm expansion. The state will cease granting new
leased areas from January 2023. The Primary Industries Minister announced that the government
would develop a new 10-year plan for the salmon industry over the next 12 months,

including investigation of opportunities for land-based fish farming and farming further

offshore. https://www.premier.tas.gov.au/site resources 2015/additional releases/10-

year plan_to support our sustainable salmon_industry This was in the aftermath of a clear loss of
social licence, and the publication of the well-researched book Toxic, by Booker prize winning author
Richard Flanagan.

Chile — in November 2021 Chile announced that they will no longer cite salmon farms in marine
protected areas — claiming they will not give any further concessions (of which there are currently
many) to salmon farmers in MPAs and they will giving remaining sites a deadline to leave.
www.elmostrador.cl/destacado/2021/11/17/no-mas-salmoneras-en-areas-protegidas-presentan-
proyecto-gue-prohibe-concesiones-en-zonas-de-conservacion/

Please note: there are no examples globally of open net salmon farms being environmentally
sustainable. They dump all their pollution, pesticides, sea lice and diseases into the shared sea, on
which others depend. They are also inherently cruel, routinely killing a quarter of the smolts that are
put into the cages before harvest, with sea lice, diseases and chemical and physical treatments for.
These reasons are why so many nations are phasing out or banning open net farms.
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The environmental impact of salmon-farming in Scotland

in farming salmon in tanks on land, while rising
licence costs in Norway are making open-net
farming at sea more expensive than land-based
farming (EUMOFA 2020). In Scotland, the same
companies and their political allies do not want
their costs to rise.

In time our warming seas could make Scottish
salmon-farming unviable, but the industry needs
to change direction before it reaches that point.
It needs better regulation, by regulators who do
not have to facilitate growth. Reforming Crown
ESIEI:ES Sﬂabﬁd lCElSt'.S C()uld encourage more respon-
sible fish-farming, as has happened in Norway,
where discounts favour less damaging methods. If
Scotland becomes independent, it will need its key
assets — including the sea — to be in good shape.
Government and industry must strive for genuine
sustainability if there is to be any future for aqua-
culture, for healthy marine wildlife communities,
including wild salmonids, and for Scottish coastal
communities, t0o.

As consumers, if we want a particular outcome
and enough of us choose to spend accordingly, we
can make this future more likely. On this basis, I
gave up eating farmed salmon some time ago.
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Enclosure 13 — Scottish Government emails.

From: [ o <<0t>
Sent: 14 January 2022 14:34

Subject: Aquacen
Hi all,

Just to provide some follow up info to what | said at the meeting with regards to
Aquacen. You can see in the Products Catalog (cenavisa.com) that there are a
number of products that appear under the Aquacen name. None of these have a
Market Authorisation (MA) in the UK but can be prescribed under cascade. Which is
how the Formaldehyde is being used, which is the product most of you will be
familiar with under the Aquacen name. This is acceptable use under the cascade as
there is no product with MA available in the UK with the same active ingredient.
Going forward | am not sure how that is liable to change with view to us no longer
being part of the EU.

However, they do need a special import certificate from VMD to be able to import
and use these products. And if there is a products that has a MA in the UK such as
Aquatet (Oxytetracycline) then that should be preferentially used. VMD grant the
special import certificated on a case by case basis.

Thanks,

arine scotland - science

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory | 375 Victoria Road| Aberdeen | AB11 9DB

: https://www.gov.scot/marine-and-



https://cenavisa.com/en/products/sp-512

Enclosure 14 — Scottish Government emails.

From: gov.scot>
Sent: 08 March 2022 10:24
To: gov.scot>

Cc: gov.scot>
Subject: Mortality issue at Torhouse Mill

g ]
and myself visited Torhouse Mill last week. During the
remote inspection we picked up an unreported mortality from July 2021; 20% loss for

site due to White Spot and water temp of 290c. Aerators were used and formalin to
reduce the white spot.

The told us had spoken to
you about it at the time and | was wondering if you can recall the conversation.

Thanks

Marine Scotland - Science

Scottish Government | Marine Laboratory | 375 Victoria Road| Aberdeen | AB11 9DB

Tel:
S/B:
Mob:

e: gov.scot
w: https://www.gov.scot/marine-and-fisheries/




Enclosure 15 — Email to Scottish Government.

rrom: | o et com>
Sent: 16 May 2022 07:50

To: First Minister <firstminister@gov.scot>

Subject: Scottish Intensive Fish Farming

»o I

Hi Nicola

next to the beautiful loch. One morning there was a
disgusting smell and the loch was a cloudy colour. The odor lingered for a few days
and | watched as families stood on the edge of the loch but did not venture in to
paddle as the water looked disgusting. This was due to the effluent from the fish farm
20 miles away building up at the head of the loch.

Since my return from that trip | have been reading about the pollution generated by
intensive fish farming in our lochs. The slurry from so many fish, the dioxins used in
the fish food sourced from the Baltic sea. The gallons of formaldehyde sprayed into
our lochs to reduce fish lice. The use of antibiotics and layres of dead fish sinking to
the base of the cages. Not to mention the heavy metals and damage to the natural
fish population. This is all quite alarming and | am not even interested in fishing.

| used to enjoy what | thought was fresh natural Scottish salmon, but no more. |
would not touch it.

| appreciate that there are a large number of Scottish jobs and income which rely on
intensive fish farming. Maybe now is the time to clean up our act while we still have a
positive reputation in the world market. | think this is an opportunity to lead the way
as Scotland does in so many other areas. We may not be in the cut price high
volume farmed salmon market but rather move to the sustainable, enviromentally
responsible end of the price range.

| can foresee that if the industry does not change they will ultimatly destroy their own
reputation, market and damage our tourist industry. This cannot be in Scotlands best
long-term interests.

| am not seeking a reply as | realise how busy you and your team must be. It was
just to express my concern on the matter.







Enclosure 15.1 — Attachment.

DIRECTORATE FOR MARINE SCOTLAND
DMARINE : Aquaculture and Recreational Fisheries

ur Reference: 202200300380
1 June 2022

Thank you for your letter of 16 May to Nicola Sturgeon MSP, First Minister of
Scotland, highlighting your concerns about the environmental impact of fish farms. |
have been asked to respond.

We support the sustainable development of aquaculture which, as you note, is a
significant employer and economic contributor, especially in many of our most
remote and fragile rural communities. However, we are clear that growth of the
aquaculture industry must be sustainable and this includes the need to consider the
natural marine environment and to have high regard for the health and welfare of
farmed fish. In Scotland, fish farming is overseen by a number of regulators,
including Marine Scotland, the Scottish Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA),
and local authorities.

All fish farms in Scotland have to meet strict environmental standards, set out within
licence, and these are regulated by SEPA with the aim of ensuring that the
environmental impacts from the industry are assessed and managed safely. SEPA
continues to implement its finfish regulatory framework, which ensures development
is in the right place, and with sufficient environmental assessments. The framework
uses enhanced modelling techniques and as well as the regular monitoring of
impacts and compliance.

Scottish fish farms are regularly inspected by Marine Scotland fish health inspectors.
They will report any significant case of poor welfare to the veterinarians in the Animal
and Plant Health Agency (APHA), who are responsible for overseeing the
requirements of the Animal Health and Welfare (Scotland) Act 2006. Through various
work-streams, we are committed to working collaboratively with a range of key
stakeholders on improving fish health and related welfare including the use of
medicines and other treatments for treating sea lice.

Food Standards Scotland works closely with the Scottish Government, Local
Authorities, and UK authorities to ensure that feed produced, distributed and sold is
safe and meets legislative requirements. The aim of legislation is to ensure that feed
is put into circulation only if it is sound, genuine and does not represent any danger
to human health, animal health or the environment. Legislation prohibits the dilution
of contaminated feed materials and it includes maximum limits for heavy metal
presence such as arsenic, lead, mercury and cadmium as well as for arsenic, dioxin,
aflatoxin, certain pesticides, and botanical impurities.

We are committed to going beyond the status quo and have recently undertaken an
independent review of aquaculture regulation. We are clear that the sector must aim



to minimise its environmental impact to ensure a sustainable future and maintain the
right balance across our economic, environmental and social responsibilities.

We appreciate the time you took to write to us with your concerns. While | hope that
we have demonstrated that fin-fish aquaculture is a highly regulated sector with
environmental controls in place, we always encourage members of the public to
contact Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) where they are concerned
about possible environmental pollution so it can have investigated and, where
appropriate, take action.

Yours sincereli
DMARINE : MScottish Ministers, special advisers and the Permanent
Secretary are covered by the terms of the Lobbying (Scotland) Act 2016. See

www.lobbying.scot
St Andrew's House, Regent Road, Edinburgh EH1 3DG
WWW.goV.scot


http://www.gov.scot/



